
8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton, WA 98312 | 360.674.2381 | www.portofbremerton.org 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 

A G E N D A 
November 12, 2024  Bill Mahan Conference Room 
10:00 AM Port Administration Offices 
 Bremerton Nat’l Airport Terminal Bldg 
 8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton 
 
The Port of Bremerton Board of Commissioners have resumed in-person meetings but are 
maintaining the option for the public to participate remotely as well. The public is invited to view 
and/or participate in the hybrid meeting by attending in person or through one of the following 
options: 

• To stream online only (via BKAT feed, with no interaction possible): 
https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live  

• To join the online Zoom meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3359030010  
• For audio only; dial 1.253.215.8782; Meeting ID: 335 903 0010  

 

Call to Order  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Agenda 

Consent Items 

All matters listed under Consent Items have been distributed to each member of the 
Commission for reading and study, are considered to be routine, and will be enacted by one 
motion of the Commission with no separate discussion.  If separate discussion is desired, that 
item may be removed from the Consent Items and placed under Action Items by request. 
 

A. Minutes of the regular business meeting of October 15, 2024. 

B. Payment of checks #902492 through #902493 and #902494 and #902495 through 
#902499 and ##02296 and #86222 through #86237 and #E02297 through #E02310 
and #902500 through #902503 and #E02311 and #902504 through #902507 and 
#E02312 and #902508 through #902518 and #E02313 and #86323 through #86382 
and #E02314 through #E02339 and #902519 and #902520 through #902523 and 
#E02340 and #902524 through #902529 and #902530 through #902533 and #86383 
through #86399 and #E02341 through #E02356 and #902534 through #902535 and 
#902536 through #902539 and #86400 through #86409 and #E02357 through 
#E02372 from the General Fund for $865,010.70. 

C. Excuse Commissioner Strakeljahn’s absence due to personal travel. 

https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3359030010


Agenda for November 12, 2024 
Page 2 

** The Commission may add and take action on other items not listed on the Agenda ** 

Work Study Session 

1. 2025 Preliminary Budget 

Citizen Comments: Open to the public for comment. Speakers are asked to keep their comments to less 
than 3 minutes. Please feel free to submit further comments in writing to the Clerk of 
the Board (gingerw@portofbremerton.org). 

Action Items 

1. First Amendment to Lease Agreement with L3Harris Technologies, Inc. 

2. Bid Acceptance for the Bay Street Structure Removal Project with Skycorp, Ltd 

Staff Reports 

Commission Reports / New Business 

Executive Session (if necessary) 

Adjournment   

 
Regular business and other meetings that may be attended by members of the Board 
Date Time Meeting 
11/12 10:00 am *Commission Regular Business Meeting – Hybrid 
11/21 11:00 am Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council (KRCC) Executive Committee 
11/26 6:00 pm *Commission Regular Business Meeting – Hybrid 

 
Meetings are subject to change or cancellation 

*Denotes events in which two (2) or more Commissioners may attend 



8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton, WA 98312 | 360.674.2381 | www.portofbremerton.org 
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

 
M I N U T E S 

October 15, 2025   Bill Mahan Conference Room 
(adjourned from October 8, 2024) Port Administration Offices 
10:00 AM Bremerton Nat’l Airport Terminal Bldg 
 8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton 
 Remote Option via Zoom  
Commissioners and Staff Present 

Commissioners 
Gary Anderson 
Cary Bozeman 
Axel Strakeljahn - Remote 

Staff Members 
Jim Rothlin 
Arne Bakker 
Aaron Schielke 
James Weaver 
James Goodman 

 
Cole Barnes 
Ginger Waye 
Stephanie Frame 
Anne Montgomery, Atty 

 
Call to Order  

President Anderson called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by BOZEMAN, seconded by STRAKELJAHN to: 

Approve the Agenda as presented. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 

Consent Items 

A. Minutes of the regular business meeting of September 24, 2024. 

B. Payment of checks #902471 through #902472 and #E02276 and #902473 and #902474 
and #86165 through #86207 and #E02277 through #E02284 and #902475 and 
#902476 through #902479 and #902480 through #902483 and #902484 and #902485 
through #902486 and #902487 and #86208 through #86221 and #E02285 through 
#E02295 and #902491 from the General Fund for $426,745.39. Void Checks #84529 
and #85004 and #85019. 

It was moved by BOZEMAN, seconded by STRAKELJAHN to: 

Approve the Consent Items as presented. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
October 15, 2024 

Page 2 of 5 

Information Items 

1. Stormwater Environmental Update – Phil Struck, Struck Environmental 

Mr. Struck offered a brief bio stating he has been practicing stormwater and 
environmental consulting for 30+ years and, to give context on his background, listed 
some of his recent projects. 

He provided a PowerPoint presentation detailing the following: 

• Status of the Port’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
Permit Compliance detailing how the Port is currently meeting the permit 
requirements; however, additional investments were discussed that are 
recommended to maintain compliance especially with new upcoming permit 
requirements.  

• Overview of the Port’s expansive stormwater system. 
• Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), which needs to be updated at 

least every 5 years or as needed.  
• Draft 2025-2029 Permit has been released and is out for comment; it will be 

finalized by the end of the year and goes into effect January 1, 2025. Major changes 
to the permit were discussed along with the potential impacts to the Port. 

• Next steps and schedule 

Mr. Struck responded to questions and comments throughout the presentation. 

Work Study Session 

1. 2025 Budget Workshop 

CEO Jim Rothlin described the overall budget process stating tonight’s workshop would 
cover details of the capital budget, overview of the operating budget, and community 
activities. 

CFO Aaron Schielke led a PowerPoint presentation providing detail on: 

• Mission & Vision 
• Port job generation 
• Port indirect economic impact 
• 2025 budget goals 

COO Arne Bakker reviewed the top Port priorities that came out of the retreat held in June 
2024 and provided the 2025 capital projects including roll-overs from prior years and new 
projects. Director of Marine Facilities, James Weaver, discussed in detail the necessary 
marina dock repair/replacements that are needed along with the Port Orchard Marina 
breakwater replacement. COO Bakker closed with a capital budget summary which listed 
a total 2025 internal funding need for capital projects of $2,039,790. 

CFO Schielke continued his presentation detailing: 



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
October 15, 2024 

Page 3 of 5 

• Operating and tax revenue comparisons from 2021-2025 
• Operating expenses comparisons from 2021-2025 
• 2025 budget operating and non-operating revenues and expenses 
• Levy analysis on property tax comparison between 0% and 1% 

Questions and comments were addressed throughout the presentation. 

CEO Rothlin introduced the 2025 community activities budget stating it is 100% 
Commission-driven. CFO Schielke presented a spreadsheet listing the previous four years’ 
allocations to community agencies and groups stating that a total of $55,000 has been 
allocated to the 2025 budget. The Commissioners were also provided with the 2025 
request letters. Following review of the spreadsheet and the 2025 requests, the 
Commissioners made the following revisions to the allocation list:  

• Visit Kitsap decreased to $2,000 
• Western Washington Center of the Arts (WWCA) – one-time at $5,000 
• Bremerton Pilots Association increased to $10,000 
• Recreational Boater Association of Washington (RBAW) added at $1,000 
• Legislative Luncheon – removed 

Citizen Comments 

Doug Haughton, President, Bremerton Pilots Association (BPA) 

• Appreciates the consideration to increase the sponsorship for BPA’s scholarship fund to 
$10,000; however, he discussed the reasoning for BPA’s 2025 request for the equivalent 
of three scholarships at $16,500 and requested the board reconsider its allocation. 

Action Items 

1. Second Amendment to Lease Agreement with American Towers, LLC  
Presented by Arne Bakker, Chief Operations Officer  

Following the presentation and after questions and comments were addressed: 

It was moved by BOZEMAN, seconded by STRAKELJAHN to: 

Approve the Second Amendment to Lease Agreement with American Towers, LLC, as 
presented and authorize the CEO to execute the Amendment. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
October 15, 2024 

Page 4 of 5 

2. Final Acceptance of OVIP 7 (Quinault Building) Roof Overlay Project 04-24-40014-C with 
Signature Roof Service, LLC  
Presented by James Goodman, Director of Facilities & Property Development  

Following the presentation and after questions were addressed: 

It was moved by BOZEMAN, seconded by STRAKELJAHN to: 

Accept as final the roofing overlay system and heater replacement project 04-24-40014-C 
at 5626 Imperial Way (OVIP 7) with Signature Roof Service, LLC, in the amount of 
$233,743. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 

Staff Reports 

Jim Rothlin, Chief Executive Officer reported on: 

• Recognized the following employees on their work anniversaries with the Port: 

o Brian Robinson, Port Maintenance III, 35 years. CEO Rothlin noted that Mr. 
Robinson was originally hired as temporary summer maintenance at $4.50/hr. 

o Ellen Ataie, Contract Administrator, 2 years 

o Tami Brackenbury, Marina Administrative Specialist, 2 years 

o Marco Baladad, Port Maintenance I – Airport, 2 years 

• Airport Feasibility Study update 

• Working with Puget Sound Energy, Willdan Energy Solutions, and the Washington 
Department of Enterprise Services on a strategic energy efficiency plan. 

• US Navy performing underwater exercises in the vicinity of Bremerton Marina in October. 

• WA Department of Fish & Wildlife conducting European green crab testing around 
Bremerton Marina. 

• Port’s fall food drive which is currently underway until the end of November. 

Commission Reports / New Business 

Commissioner Anderson 

• Attended the Northwest Marina & Boatyard Conference hosted by Northwest Marine 
Trade Association (NMTA) and Washington Public Ports Association (WPPA). Director of 
Marine Facilities, James Weaver, provided details on the conference.  

Executive Session - None 



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
October 15, 2024 

Page 5 of 5 

Adjournment 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 12:06 p.m. 

Submitted,      Approved, 

 

Jim Rothlin      Cary Bozeman 
Chief Executive Officer    Commission Vice-President 
November 7, 2024     November 12, 2024 
 



 

 

 

Port of Bremerton  

Preliminary Budget 

2025 

 

  



Port of Bremerton
2025 Preliminary Consolidated Budget

 
Revenues 2024 Budget 2025 Budget Change $ Change %
Airport 661,449                709,880             48,431           7.32%
Industrial Parks 1,711,605            1,860,640          149,035         8.71%
Port Orchard Marina 2,059,884            2,074,456          14,572           0.71%
Bremerton Marina 1,330,630            1,429,500          98,870           7.43%
Other Marinas 109,706                91,336               (18,370)          -16.74%
Total Operating Revenues 5,873,274            6,165,812         292,538         4.98%

Non-Operating Revenues 2024 Budget 2025 Budget Change $ Change %
Tax Levy 4,123,766            4,357,262          233,496         5.66%
Grants/Loans 7,283,000            2,145,000          (5,138,000)    -70.55%
Interest Income 260,000                885,000             625,000         240.38%
Total Non-Operating Revenues 11,666,766          7,387,262         (4,279,505)    -36.68%

Total Revenue (Sources) 17,540,040          13,553,074       (3,986,967)    -22.73%

Operating Expenses 2024 Budget 2025 Budget Change $ Change %
Airport 1,388,693            1,342,520          (46,173)          -3.32%
Industrial Parks 1,084,166            1,049,389          (34,777)          -3.21%
Port Orchard Marina 1,904,189            2,013,267          109,078         5.73%
Bremerton Marina 1,324,630            1,411,247          86,617           6.54%
Other Marinas 131,550                146,132             14,582           11.08%
General & Administrative 2,495,170            2,555,817          60,647           2.43%
Total Operating Expenses 8,328,398            8,518,372         189,974         2.28%

Non-Operating Expenses 2024 Budget 2025 Budget Change $ Change %
Interest Expense 31,091                  42,108               11,017           35.43%
Debt Service 119,325                391,663             272,338         228.23%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 150,416               433,771             283,355         188.38%

Total Expenses 8,478,814            8,952,143         473,329         5.58%

Transfer (from) to Stormwater Reserve 314,025                (235,000)            (549,025)       -174.83%
New Building Funding - Future Year Capital Project -                        300,000             300,000         100.00%
Transfer (from) to Reserves -                        146,141             146,141         100.00%
Net Transfer from(to) Reserves 314,025               211,141             (102,885)       -32.76%

Total Available for Capital Projects 8,747,201            4,389,790         (4,357,411)    -49.81%

Capital Projects 2024 Budget 2025 Budget Change Change
Airport 787,500                2,200,000          1,412,500     (787,500)       
Industrial Parks 705,000                645,000             (60,000)          (705,000)       
Port Orchard Marina 6,040,500            235,000             (5,805,500)    (6,040,500)    
Bremerton Marina 152,500                122,000             (30,500)          (152,500)       
Other Marinas 777,000                1,030,000          253,000         (777,000)       
General & Administrative 284,701                157,790             (126,911)       (284,701)       
Total Capital 8,747,201            4,389,790         (4,357,411)    -49.81%

Total Expenses & Capital (Uses) 17,540,040          13,553,074       (3,986,967)    -22.73%



 Grants/ 
Appropriations 

Restricted 
Reserves Net $ 2025

Airport Airport Master plan 800,000$            (720,000)$          80,000$                             
Airport Feasibility Study Phase 2 515,000$            (515,000)$          -$                                   
GA Economic Impact Study 75,000$              75,000$                             
OVIP Cruiser Loop Spec building Design 250,000$            250,000$                          
BM Restroom showers remodel 12,000$              12,000$                             
PO Prop Marina Park restroom/lift station design 100,000$            100,000$                          
Airport Regulator & Capacitor Replacement Airport Lighting 35,000$              35,000$                             
Airport Hangar 11-16 Ramp Rehabilitation 500,000$            500,000$                          
PO Prop Baystreet Environmental Project (521,525 Bay Str) 760,000$            (760,000)$          -$                                   
APT/OVIP Stormwater Enhanced Maintenance Plan 80,000$              (60,000)$             (20,000)$             -$                                   
POM Fuel tank lining & refit 185,000$            185,000$                          
APT/OVIP OWS Shop (Restricted Stormwater) 90,000$              (90,000)$             -$                                   
APT/OVIP Backhoe 125,000$            (125,000)$           -$                                   
APT/OVIP Wastewaster pond water service 50,000$              50,000$                             
APT/OVIP Small Wastewaster debris screen & removal 200,000$            200,000$                          
POM Marina Office roof  replacement 20,000$              20,000$                             
APT/OVIP Vehicle Replacement/Replacement of Ranger 1998 55,000$              55,000$                             
POM IT Equipment replacement (Router, switches, patch)/ dedicated 30,000$              30,000$                             
BM Truck replacement Ranger (2005) 55,000$              55,000$                             
BM Office VAN replacement 55,000$              55,000$                             
Airport Terminal Building Exterior Siding / Paint 25,000$              25,000$                             
APT/OVIP Fuel Pumps Maintenance Shop 50,000$              50,000$                             
OVIP Security Cameras OVIP 20,000$              20,000$                             
OVIP Belfair Hose Fencing 50,000$              50,000$                             
PO Prop Marina Park ADA Improvements (only if Grant is obtained) 170,000$            (90,000)$             80,000$                             

SUB TOTAL - New 2025 Projects 4,307,000$         (2,145,000)$       (235,000)$           1,927,000$                       

Replenishment of Capital Reserve Funding:
Site, Utility, Building Improvements ($200,000 target) 22,755$              22,755$                             
Business Development Opportunities ($50,000 target) 10,035$              10,035$                             
Software Upgrades, System Expansion ($150,000 target) 50,000$              50,000$                             

Total Capital Projects 4,389,790$         (2,145,000)$       (235,000)$           2,009,790$                       

Segment New Projects for 2025
 2025 Project 

Budget 

Port of Bremerton
2025 Preliminary Capital Budget



J:\Public_Forms\Agenda Materials\2024 Agenda Materials\2024-11-12\Lease Amendment 1 - L3Harris\Agenda Summary L3Harris Lease.docx 

 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 
 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #1 

Subject: L3Harris First Amendment to Lease Agreement 

Exhibits: Lease Amendment 

Prepared By: Cole Barnes, Airport Manager 

Meeting Date: November 12, 2024 

 
Summary: 
L3Harris has operated and maintained the FAA’s Automatic Dependent Surveillance 
Broadcast (ADS-B) at Bremerton National Airport since May 26, 2009. ADS-B is a technology 
used in aviation to improve the accuracy and efficiency of air traffic control. Currently, 
L3Harris is negotiating a new contract with the FAA, which is set to expire on September 30, 
2025. L3Harris needs to execute an annual extension for their 50’x50’ ground lease with the 
Port. Currently, L3Harris does not pay a lease rate as they are providing the airport with an 
ADS-B radio station in coordination with an FAA contract. This lease will be renewed as long 
as the FAA contract is in place with L3Harris. This is an FAA driven program that adds great 
benefit to our airport in exchange for a small plot of land that would otherwise not be utilized. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 

 
Strategic Purpose: 
This action conforms with the Port’s strategic plan in Goal Strategy 4.c. Have a deliberate, 
cost-effective process for evaluating new and unique business opportunities. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of Lease Amendment #1 with L3Harris Technologies Inc. 

 
Motion for Consideration: 
Move to approve the First Amendment to Lease Agreement with L3Harris 
Technologies Inc. as presented. 



1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE 
BREMERTON NATIONAL AIRPORT, ADS-B RADIO STATION SITE SV174-19 

 
 This First Amendment (“Amendment”) is made by and between L3Harris Technologies, Inc., 
(“Lessee”) a Delaware corporation, and the The Port of Bremerton, (“Lessor”).  This amendment is 
effective as of the date of the last signature below (“Effective Date”). This Amendment may refer to 
L3Harris and the The Port of Bremerton collectively as the “Parties,” or individually as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the original ADS-B radio station site lease agreement (“Agreement”) originally dated 
26 May 2009 was between the Port of Bremerton and ITT Corporation (“Original Lessee”); and 

WHEREAS, Original Lessee divested into Exelis Inc. effective October 31, 2011, Exelis Inc. then 
merged with and into Harris Corporation effective as of December 31, 2015, and Harris Corporation 
changed its name to L3Harris Technologies, Inc. effective as of June 29, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the ADS-B radio station site on the leased premises is an integral part of the FAA 
National Airspace Systems (NAS); and 

WHEREAS, the initial 18-year FAA contract term for ADS-B surveillance services with the Lessee 
concludes at the end of GFY 2025 with such contract services thereafter being continued by FAA extension 
to the current contract and/or continued under a new FAA contract; and 

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee desire to amend the terms of the Agreement to update the point of 
contact for Notice and to extend the term thereof and to otherwise modify the Agreement as expressly 
provided herein to accommodate services beyond GFY2025 by removing the September 30, 2025 
occupancy limitation and replacing it with a limitation based on the then-current FAA contract, thereby 
providing assurance to the airport that the lease remains valid only if the lessee has an active contract 
with the FAA that is supported by the leased premises. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by 
each Party hereto, the Parties mutually agree as follows: 

1. RENEWAL.  Section 7 of the Agreement is deleted and replaced with the following:    
 
This lease may be renewed from year to year at the option of Lessee upon the terms and 
conditions herein specified. Lessee’s option shall be deemed exercised and the lease renewed 
each year for one (1) year unless Lessee gives Lessor thirty (30) days written notice that it will 
not exercise its option, before this lease or any renewal thereof expires; provided, that no 
renewal thereof shall extend the period of occupancy of the premises beyond the term of the 
then-current FAA contract supported by the use of the premises. 
 

2. NOTICES.  Section 15 of the Agreement is deleted and replaced with the following:    



2 
 

All notices/correspondences shall be in writing and shall be addressed as follows (or to such other 
address as either Party may designate from time to time by notice or correspondence to the 
other). 

TO LESSOR:  
 
TO LESSEE: L3Harris Technologies, Inc. 

Attn: Jennifer Banasik 
  2235 Monroe Street (5th floor),  

Herndon, VA  20171.  
Jennifer.Banasik@L3harris.com. 
 

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment by their duly authorized officers or 
representatives as of the date shown below. 

 
THE PORT OF BREMERTON                           L3HARRIS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.     
        

Signature: ___________________________        Signature:       

Name: ______________________________      Name:        

Title: _______________________________         Title:        

Date:     ___    Date:        

 

mailto:Jennifer.Banasik@L3harris.com


J:\Public_Forms\Agenda Materials\2024 Agenda Materials\2024-11-12\Bid Acceptance - Bay St Structure Removal\AGENDA SUMMARY-Action Item  -Bid Accept and Contract for 
Bay St Structure Removal.docx 

 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 
 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #2 

Subject: Bid Acceptance - Bay St. Properties Structure Removal 

Exhibits: Construction Contract with Skycorp, Ltd  

Prepared By: James Weaver, Director of Marine Facilities 

Meeting Date: November 12, 2024 

 
Summary: 
This project is for the bid acceptance and construction contract of the removal of two 
structures located at 521 and 525 Bay Street in Port Orchard Washington.    
 
In 2020, the Port of Bremerton purchased properties located at 521 and 525 Bay Street, Port 
Orchard, Washington, which contained former petroleum tanks and contaminated soils.  
Permits for the structure removal have been approved by the City of Port Orchard.  The bid 
acceptance and construction contract are for the hazardous construction material abatement 
and removal of two structures to allow for the tank removal, contaminated soils removal, and 
for the environmental cleanup work to proceed.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Total 2024 Capital Budget #03-22-30008 Bay St properties: $ 120,208.00 
(The original estimated project cost: $ 95,000.00) 
The Skycorp, LTD bid amount $   58,312.80 
Remaining 2024 Capital Budget #03-22-30008 Bay St properties:  $   61,895.20 
 
Strategic Purpose: 
This action conforms with the Port’s strategic plan in Goal 7. Continue to improve the Port’s 
environmental performance and minimize its ecological footprint. 
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize staff to accept the bid from Skycorp, Ltd for the Bay Street properties’ structure 
removal and to authorize the CEO to sign the construction contract. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
Move to accept the bid from Skycorp, Ltd for the Bay Street properties’ structure 
removal and to authorize the CEO to sign the construction contract. 






























	2024-11-12_Agenda
	2024-10-15_Minutes
	Work Study Item 1 - Preliminary Budget
	Cover Sheet 2025
	Preliminary Consolidated Budget 2025 11-6-24
	Preliminary Capital Budget 2025 11-6-24

	Action Item 1 - Lease Amendment L3Harris
	Agenda Summary L3Harris Lease
	Port of Bremerton Land Lease - Amendment 10022024

	Action Item 2 - Bid Acceptance Bay St Structure Removal
	AGENDA SUMMARY-Action Item  -Bid Accept and Contract for Bay St Structure Removal
	DOC103024-10302024155200


